
 
Board of Commissioners 
606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 

Roseau, MN 56751 
Phone:  218-463-4248 

Fax:  218-463-3252 

 
 
 

County Coordinator’s Office e-mail address: annmarie.miller@co.roseau.mn.us, Roseau County Home Page Address:  http://www.co.roseau.mn.us/ 
 

District 1, Glenda Phillipe - District 2, Jack Swanson  
District 3, Roger Falk, Chair - District 4, Todd Miller, Vice-Chair - District 5, Mark Foldesi 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Roseau County will meet in session on May 10, 2016, at 9:00 a.m., in the 
Roseau County Courthouse, Room 110, Roseau, MN, at which time the following matters will come before the Board: 
 
9:00 Call to Order  

1. Presentation of Colors 
2. Approve Agenda 
3. Comments and Announcements 
4. Approve Bills 

 
9:05 Public Hearing – Tobacco Ordinance 
 
9:15 Public Hearing – Clean Indoor Air Ordinance 
 
9:25 Delegations/Board Appointments/Public Comments* 

 
9:30 Consent Agenda 

1. April 26, 2016 Board Proceedings 
2. Advertisement for Hire  

 
9:35 Department Reports  

 
9:40 County Board Items  

1. Commissioner Committee Reports 
 

10:30 Unfinished Business 
 

10:30 Adjourn  
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*Limited to five minutes 

mailto:annmarie.miller@co.roseau.mn.us
http://co.roseau.mn.us/


Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Public Hearing  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 10, 2016 Originating Department:  Auditor/Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Public Hearing – Tobacco Ordinance 

Presenter:  Martie Monsrud/Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☒ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Hear public comment concerning the proposed revision(s) to Ordinance No. 27, (attached).  The Board 
may, or may not, take action at the conclusion of the public hearing. 
 

Background: 
The Notice of Intention to Amend Ordinance - Notice of Hearing (attached) was adopted by Board Resolution on 
April 12, 2016, and published according to the applicable State Statutes. 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

☐ County Board Items ☒ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



 

 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, 
Minnesota, will meet on Tuesday, May 10, 2016, at 9:05 a.m. at the Roseau County 
Courthouse, Board of Commissioners Meeting Room, No. 110, in Roseau, Minnesota, 
for the purpose of conducting a public hearing, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 375.51, 
to obtain public input regarding a revised Ordinance No. 27, which is entitled:  “Tobacco 
Ordinance.”  All persons interested may appear and be heard at the time and place set 
forth above, or may file written comments with the County Auditor prior to the date of the 
hearing set forth above. A sample of the proposed Ordinance is on file in the Auditor’s 
Office and is available on-line at http://co.roseau.mn.us, click on “Revised Tobacco 
Ordinance.”  Written comments may be sent via mail to the Roseau County Auditor, 606 
5th Ave SW, Room 160, Roseau, MN 56751; or e-mail to: martie@co.roseau.mn.us. 

 
DATED:  April 12, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BY ORDER OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

(SEAL) 
 
Jeff Pelowski 
Roseau County Coordinator 

http://co.roseau.mn.us/


 1 

Roseau County Tobacco Ordinance 
The County Board of the County of Roseau, Minnesota, hereby ordains: 

 
Section 1.  Authority.  The Roseau County Board shall license and regulate the sale of 
tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, and nicotine or lobelia 
delivery products in the unorganized territory of the County and in any city or town that 
does not license and regulate sale of tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery 
devices, and nicotine or lobelia delivery products in conformance with the requirements 
of Minn. Stat. ch. 461. Retail establishments licensed by a city or town are not required to 
obtain a second license for the same location under this Ordinance. This Ordinance is 
adopted under the authority and pursuant to the mandate of Minn. Stat. § 461.12. 
 
Section 2.  Purpose and Intent.  Because the County recognizes that many persons 
under the age of 18 years purchase or otherwise obtain, possess, and use tobacco, 
tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, and nicotine or lobelia delivery 
products and such sales, possession and use are violations of both state and federal laws; 
because studies, which are herby accepted and adopted, have shown that most smokers 
begin smoking before they have reached the age of eighteen (18) years and that those 
persons who reach the age of eighteen (18) years without having started smoking are 
significantly less likely to begin smoking; and because tobacco use has been shown to be 
the cause of several serious health problems which subsequently place financial burden 
on all levels of government; this Ordinance shall be intended to regulate the sale, 
possession, and use of tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, and 
nicotine or lobelia delivery products for the purpose of enforcing and furthering existing 
laws, to protect minors against the serious effects associated with illegal use and to 
further the official public policy of the State of Minnesota in regard to preventing young 
people from starting to smoke as stated in Minn. Stat. § 144.391. 
 
Section 3.  Definitions and Interpretations. Except as may otherwise be provided or 
clearly implied by context, all terms shall be given their commonly accepted definitions. 
The singular shall include the plural and plural shall include the singular. The masculine 
shall include the feminine and neuter and vice versa. The term “shall” means mandatory 
and the term “may” means permissive. The following terms shall have the definitions 
given to them. 

      Subd. 1. Child-Resistant Packaging. “Child-Resistant Packaging” shall mean 
packaging that meets the definition set forth in Code of Federal Regulations title 16, 
section 1700.15(b), as in effect on January 1, 2015, and was tested in accordance with the 
method described in Code of Federal Regulations, title 16, section 1700.20. 
Subd. 2. Compliance Checks. “Compliance Checks” shall mean the system the County 
uses to investigate and ensure that those authorized to sell tobacco, tobacco-related 
devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products are following 
and complying with the requirements of this Ordinance. Compliance checks shall involve 
the use of minors as authorized by this Ordinance. Compliance checks shall also mean 
the use of minors who attempt to purchase tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic 
delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products for educational, research and 
training purposes as authorized by state and federal laws. Compliance checks may also be 



 2 

conducted by other units of government for the purpose of enforcing appropriate federal, 
state, and local laws and regulations relating to tobacco, tobacco-related devices, 
electronic delivery devices, and nicotine or lobelia delivery products. 
Subd. 3.  Electronic Delivery Device. “Electronic Delivery Device” shall mean any 
product containing or delivering nicotine, lobelia, or any other substance intended for 
human consumption that can be used by a person to simulate smoking in the delivery of 
nicotine or any other substance through inhalation of aerosol or vapor from the product. 
Electronic delivery device includes any component part of such a product whether or not 
sold separately. Electronic delivery device does not include any product that has been 
approved or otherwise certified by the United States Food and Drug Administration for 
sale as a tobacco-cessation product, as a tobacco-dependence product, or for other 
medical purposes, and is marketed and sold for such an approved purpose.  
Subd. 4.  Loosies. “Loosies” shall mean the common term used to refer to a single or 
individually packaged cigarette.  
Subd. 5.  Minor.  “Minor” shall mean any natural person who has not yet reached the 
age of eighteen (18) years. 
Subd. 6.  Moveable Place of Business. “Moveable Place of Business” shall refer to any 
form of business operated out of a kiosk, truck, van, automobile, or other type of vehicle 
or transportable shelter and not a fixed address store front or other permanent type of 
structure authorized for sales transactions. 
Subd. 7.  Nicotine or Lobelia Delivery Product. “Nicotine or Lobelia Delivery 
Product” shall mean any product containing or delivering nicotine or lobelia intended for 
human consumption, or any part of such a product, that is not tobacco or an electronic 
delivery device as defined in this section, not including any product that has been 
approved or otherwise certified for legal sale by the United States Food and Drug 
Administration for tobacco use cessation or for other medical purposes, and is being 
marketed and sold solely for such approved purpose. 
Subd. 8.  Retail Establishment. “Retail Establishment” shall mean any place of business 
where tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia 
delivery products are available for sale to the general public. Retail establishments shall 
include, but not limited to, grocery stores, convenience stores, restaurants, and drug 
stores. 
Subd. 9.  Sale.  A “Sale” shall mean any transfer of goods for money, trade, barter, or 
other consideration. 
Subd. 10.  Self-Service Merchandising. “Self-Service Merchandising” shall mean open 
displays of tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or 
lobelia delivery products in any manner where any person can have access to the tobacco, 
tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery 
products without the assistance or intervention of the licensee or the licensee’s employee. 
The assistance or intervention shall entail the actual physical exchange of the tobacco, 
tobacco-related device, electronic delivery device, or nicotine or lobelia delivery product 
between the customer and the licensee or employee. Self-service merchandising shall not 
include vending machines. 
Subd. 11. Tobacco or Tobacco Product.  “Tobacco” or “Tobacco Product” shall mean 
any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco that is intended for human 
consumption, whether chewed, smoked, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, snorted, sniffed, or 



 3 

ingested by any other means, or any component, part, or accessory of a tobacco product 
including but not limited to cigarettes; cigars; cheroots; stogies; perique; granulated, plug 
cut, crimp cut, ready rubbed, and other smoking tobacco; snuff; snuff flour; cavendish; 
plug and twist tobacco; fine cut and other chewing tobaccos, shorts, refuse scraps, 
clippings, cuttings and sweepings of tobacco; and other kinds and forms of tobacco. 
Tobacco excludes any tobacco product that has been approved by the United States Food 
and Drug Administration for sale as a tobacco cessation product, as a tobacco dependence 
product, or for other medical purposes, and is being marketed and sold solely for such an 
approved purpose.  
Subd. 12. Tobacco-Related Device. “Tobacco-Related Device” shall mean cigarette 
papers or pipes for smoking or other devices intentionally designed or intended to be used 
in a manner, which enables the chewing, sniffing, smoking, or inhalation of vapors of 
tobacco or tobacco products. Tobacco-related devices include components of tobacco-
related devices, which may be marketed or sold separately. 
Subd. 13. Vending Machine. “Vending Machine” shall mean any mechanical, electric or 
electronic, or other device which dispenses tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic 
delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products upon the insertion of money, 
token, other form of payment directly in the machine by the person seeking to purchase 
the tobacco, tobacco-related device, electronic delivery device, or nicotine or lobelia 
delivery product. 
 
Section 4.  License.  No person shall sell or offer to sell any tobacco, tobacco-related 
device, electronic delivery device, or nicotine or lobelia delivery product without first 
having obtained a license to do so from the County. 
Subd.  1.  Application.  Any application for a license to sell tobacco, tobacco-related 
devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products shall be 
made on a form provided by the County. The application shall contain the full name of 
the applicant, the applicant’s residential and business addresses and telephone numbers, 
the name of the business and telephone numbers, the name of the business for which the 
license is sought, and any additional information the County deems necessary. Upon 
receipt of a completed application, the Roseau County Auditor/Treasurer shall forward 
the application to the County Board for action at its next regularly scheduled board 
meeting. If the Roseau County Auditor/Treasurer shall determine that an application is 
incomplete, he or she shall return the application to the applicant with notice of the 
information necessary to make the application complete. 
Subd. 2. Action. The County Board may either approve or deny the license, or it may 
delay action for such reasonable period of time as necessary to complete any 
investigation of the application or the applicant it deems necessary. If the County Board 
shall approve the license, the Roseau County Auditor/Treasurer shall issue the license to 
the applicant. If the County Board denies the license, notice of the denial shall be given to 
the applicant along with notice of the applicant’s right to appeal the decision. 
Subd. 3. Term. All licenses issued under this Ordinance shall be valid for one calendar 
year from the date of issue. 
Subd. 4. Fee. No license shall be issued under this Ordinance until the appropriate 
license fee is pain in full. The fee shall be established by ordinance and may be amended 
from time to time. 



 4 

Subd. 5. Revocation or Suspension. Any license issued under this Ordinance may be 
revoked or suspended following the procedures provided in the Violations and Penalties 
sections of this Ordinance. 
Subd. 6. Transfers. All licenses issued under this Ordinance shall be valid only on the 
premises for which the license was issued and only for the person to whom the license 
was issued. No transfer of any license to another person or for another location shall be 
valid. 
Subd. 7. Moveable Place of Business. No license shall be issued to a moveable place of 
business. Only a fixed location business shall be eligible to be licensed under this 
Ordinance. 
Subd. 8. Display. All licenses shall be posted and displayed in plain view of the general 
public on the licensed premise. 
Subd. 9. Renewals. The renewal of a license under this section shall be handled in the 
same manner as the original application. The request for a renewal shall be made at least 
thirty (30) days but no more than sixty (60) days before the expiration of the current 
license. 
Subd. 10. Issuance as Privilege and Not a Right. The issuance of a license issued under 
this Ordinance shall be considered a privilege and not an absolute right of the applicant 
and shall not entitle the holder to an automatic renewal of the license. 
 
Section 5.  Basis for Denial of License.  The following shall be grounds for denying the 
issuance of renewal of a license under this Ordinance:  
a. The applicant is under the age of eighteen (18) years. 
b. The applicant has been convicted within the past five years of any violation of a 
federal, state, or local law, ordinance provision, or other regulation relating to tobacco, 
tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery 
products. 
c. The applicant has had a license to sell tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic 
delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products suspended or revoked with the 
preceding twelve months of the date of application. 
d. The applicant is prohibited by federal, state, or other local law, or other regulation, 
from holding such a license. 
e. The applicant fails to provide any information required on the application or provides 
false or misleading information. 
However, except as may otherwise be provided by aw, the existence of any particular 
ground for denial does not mean that the County must deny the license. If a license is 
mistakenly issued or renewed to any person based on false or misleading information or 
other grounds for denial, the license shall be revoked up discovery. 
 
Section 6. Prohibited Sales. It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any person to 
sell or offer to sell any tobacco, tobacco-related device, electronic delivery device, or 
nicotine or lobelia delivery product: 
a. To any person under the age of eighteen (18) years. 
b. By means of loosies as defined in Section 3 of this Ordinance.  
c. Containing opium, morphine, jimson weed, bella donna, strychnos, cocaine, marijuana, 
or other deleterious, hallucinogenic, toxic, or controlled substances except nicotine and 



 5 

other substances found naturally in tobacco or added as part of an otherwise lawful 
manufacturing process. 
d. By any other means, to any other person, or in any other manner or form prohibited by 
federal, state, or local law, ordinance provisions, or other regulation. 
 
Section 7. Vending Machines.  It shall be unlawful for any person licensed under this 
Ordinance to allow the sale of tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery 
devices or nicotine or lobelia products by means of a vending machine unless minors are 
at all times prohibited from entering the licensed establishment. 
 
Section 8. Liquid Packaging. It shall be unlawful for any person licensed under this 
Ordinance to allow the sale of any liquid, whether or not such liquid contains nicotine 
that is intended for human consumption and use in an electronic delivery device in 
packaging that is not child-resistant. Upon request, a licensee shall provide a copy of the 
certificate of compliance or full laboratory testing report for the packaging used. 
 
Section 9. Self-Service Sales. It shall be unlawful for a licensee under this Ordinance to 
allow the sale of tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine 
or lobelia delivery products by any means whereby the customer may have access to such 
items without having to request the item from the licensee or the licensee’s employee and 
whereby there is not a physical exchange of the tobacco, tobacco related device, 
electronic delivery device, or nicotine or lobelia delivery product between the licensee or 
his or her clerk and the customer. All tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic 
delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products shall either be stored behind the 
counter or other area not freely accessible to customers, or in case or other storage unit 
not left open and accessible to the general public.  
 
Section 10. Responsibility. All licensees under this Ordinance shall be responsible for 
the actions of their employees in regard to the sale of tobacco, tobacco-related devices, 
electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products on the licensed 
premises, and the sale of such an item by an employee shall be considered a sale by the 
license holder. Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the County from 
also subjecting the clerk to whatever penalties are appropriate under this Ordinance, state 
or federal law, or other applicable law or regulation. 
 
Section 11. Compliance Checks and Inspections. All licensed premises shall be open to 
inspection by the Roseau County Sheriff’s Office or other designated personnel during 
regular business hours. From time to time, but at least once per year, the County or their 
designee shall conduct compliance checks by engaging with the written consent of their 
parents or guardians, minors over the age of fifteen (15) years but less that eighteen (18) 
years to enter the licensed premise to attempt to purchase tobacco, tobacco-related 
devices, electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products. Minors used 
for the purpose of compliance checks shall be supervised by designated law enforcement 
officers or other county personnel. Minors used for compliance checks shall not be guilty 
of the unlawful purchase, attempted purchase or possession of tobacco, tobacco-related 
devices, electronic delivery devices, or lobelia delivery products when such items are 



 6 

obtained as part of the compliance check. No minor used in compliance checks shall 
attempt to use a false identification misrepresenting the minor’s age and all minors 
lawfully engaged in a compliance check shall answer all questions about the minor’s age 
asked by the licensee or his or her employee and shall provide any identification, if any 
exists, for which he or she is asked. Nothing in this section shall prohibit compliance 
checks authorized by state or federal laws for education, research, or training purposes, or 
required for the enforcement of a particular state of federal law. 
 
Section 12. Other Illegal Acts. Unless otherwise provided, the following acts shall be a 
violation of this Ordinance.  
Subd. 1. Illegal Sales. It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any person to sell or 
otherwise provide any tobacco, tobacco-related device, electronic delivery device, or 
nicotine or lobelia delivery product to a minor. 
Subd. 2. Illegal Possession. It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any minor to 
have in his or her possession any tobacco, tobacco-related device, electronic delivery 
device, or nicotine or lobelia delivery product. 
Subd. 3. Illegal Use. It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any minor to smoke, 
chew, sniff, or otherwise use any tobacco, tobacco related device, electronic delivery 
device, or nicotine or lobelia delivery product. 
Subd. 4. Illegal Procurement. It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any minor to 
purchase, attempt to purchase, or otherwise obtain any tobacco, tobacco-related device, 
electronic delivery device, or nicotine or lobelia delivery product, and it shall be a 
violation of this Ordinance for any person to purchase or otherwise obtain such items on 
behalf of a minor. It shall further be a violation for any person to coerce or attempt to 
coerce a minor to illegally purchase or otherwise obtain or use any tobacco, tobacco-
related device, electronic delivery device, or nicotine or lobelia delivery product. 
Subd. 5. Use of False Identification. It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any 
minor to attempt to disguise his or her true age by the use of a false form of 
identification, whether the identification is that of another person or one on which the age 
of the person has been modified or tampered with to represent an age older than the 
actual age of the person. 
 
Section 13. Violations. 

 Subd. 1. Notice. Upon discovery of a suspected violation, the alleged violator shall be 
issued a citation from the issuing authority, either personally or by certified mail, that set 
forth the alleged violation and which shall inform the alleged violator of his or her right 
to be heard on the accusation. 
Subd. 2. Hearings. Upon issuance of a citation, a person accused of violating this 
Ordinance may request in writing a hearing on the matter. Hearing requests must be made 
within ten (10) business days of the issuance of the citation and delivered to the County 
Auditor or other designated County officer. Failure to request a hearing within ten (10) 
business days of the issuance of the citation will terminate the person’s right to a hearing.  
If a person accused of violating this Ordinance so requests, a hearing shall be scheduled, 
the time and place of which shall be published and provided to the accused violator. 



 7 

Subd. 3. Hearing Officer. The County official designated by the County Board shall 
serve as the hearing officer. The hearing officer must be an impartial employee of the 
County or an impartial person retained by the County to conduct the hearing. 
Subd. 4. Decision. If the hearing officer determines that a violation of this Ordinance did 
occur, that decision, along with the hearing officer’s reasons for finding a violation and 
the copy of which shall be provided to the accused violator. Likewise, if the hearing 
officer finds that no violation occurred or finds grounds for not imposing any penalty, 
such findings shall be recorded and a copy provided to the acquitted accused violator.  
Subd. 5.  Appeals.  Appeals of any decision made by the hearing officer shall be filed in 
Roseau County District Court.  
Subd. 6.  Misdemeanor Prosecution.  Nothing in this section shall prohibit the County 
from seeking prosecution as a misdemeanor for any alleged violation of this Ordinance. If 
the County elects to seek misdemeanor prosecution, no administrative penalty shall be 
imposed. 
Subd. 7.  Continued Violation.  Each violation, and every day in which a violation 
occurs or continues, shall constitute a separate offense. 
Subd. 8.  Payment of Fines.  All fines shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the receipt 
of the citation, decision of the hearing officer, or decision of the Roseau County District 
Court. Failure to pay the fine in a timely fashion shall result in the suspension of the 
license until the fine is paid in full. 
 
Section 14. Administrative Penalties. 
Subd. 1. Licensees. If a licensee or employee of a licensee violates any provision of this 
Ordinance, the licensee shall be charged an administrative penalty of $75.00 for the first 
violation. An administrative penalty of $200.00 must be imposed for a second violation at 
the same location within twenty-four (24) months after the initial violation. For a third 
violation at the same location within 24 months after the initial violation, an 
administrative penalty of $250 must be imposed, and the licensee’s authority to sell 
tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, and nicotine or lobelia 
delivery products at that location must be suspended for not less than seven days.  
Subd. 2. Other Individuals. An individual who sells tobacco, tobacco-related devices, 
electronic delivery devices, or nicotine or lobelia delivery products to a person under the 
age of 18 years shall be charged an administrative penalty of $50.00. 
Subd. 3. Minors. Minors found in unlawful possession of, or who unlawfully purchase 
or attempts to purchase tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, or 
nicotine or lobelia products may be subject to an administrative fine, or may be subject to 
tobacco related education classes, diversion programs, community services, or another 
penalty that the County believes will be appropriate and effective. The administrative fine 
or other penalty may be established by ordinance upon the County Board’s consultation 
with interested parties of the courts, educators, parents and children to determine an 
appropriate penalty for minors in the County. 
Subd. 4. Misdemeanor. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the County from seeking 
prosecution as a misdemeanor for any violation of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 15. Exception and Defenses. Nothing in this Ordinance shall prevent the 
providing of tobacco, or tobacco-related devices, electronic delivery devices, to a minor 



 8 

as part of a lawfully recognized religion, spiritual, or cultural ceremony. It shall be an 
affirmative defense to the violation of this Ordinance for a person to have reasonably 
relied on proof of age as described by state law. 
 
Section 16.  Severability and Savings Clause. If any section or portion of this 
Ordinance shall be found to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, that finding shall not serve as an invalidation or affect 
the validity and enforceability of any other section or provision of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 17.  Date of Adoption.  This Ordinance is hereby adopted by the Roseau County 
Board of Commissioners the ________day of__________________, 2016.  The 
Ordinance shall be effective upon implementation by the Roseau County Board of 
Commissioners and its publication in accordance with the law, on the ______day of 
____________________, 2016. 
 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Public Hearing  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 10, 2016 Originating Department:  Auditor/Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Public Hearing – Clean Indoor Air Ordinance 

Presenter:  Martie Monsrud/Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☒ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Hear public comment concerning the proposed Clean Indoor Air Ordinance, (attached).  The Board may, 
or may not, take action at the conclusion of the public hearing. 
 

Background: 
The Notice of Intention to Amend Ordinance - Notice of Hearing (attached) was adopted by Board Resolution on 
April 12, 2016, and published according to the applicable State Statutes. 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

☐ County Board Items ☒ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



 

 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, 
Minnesota, will meet on Tuesday, May 10, 2016, at 9:15 a.m. at the Roseau County 
Courthouse, Board of Commissioners Meeting Room, No. 110, in Roseau, Minnesota, 
for the purpose of conducting a public hearing, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 375.51, 
to obtain public input regarding a revised Ordinance No. 39, which is entitled:  “Clean 
Indoor Air Ordinance.”  All persons interested may appear and be heard at the time and 
place set forth above, or may file written comments with the County Auditor prior to the 
date of the hearing set forth above. A sample of the proposed Ordinance is on file in the 
Auditor’s Office and is available on-line at http://co.roseau.mn.us, click on “Clean Indoor 
Air Ordinance.”  Written comments may be sent via mail to the Roseau County Auditor, 
606 5th Ave SW, Room 160, Roseau, MN 56751; or e-mail to: 
martie@co.roseau.mn.us. 

 
DATED:  April 12, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BY ORDER OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

(SEAL) 
Jeff Pelowski 
Roseau County Coordinator 

http://co.roseau.mn.us/


 1 

Roseau County Clean Indoor Air Ordinance DRAFT 
 
The County of Roseau, State of Minnesota, ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Purpose or Findings. 
 
Tobacco smoke is a leading cause of disease in nonsmokers and a major source of indoor air pollution.  
Secondhand smoke causes heart disease, lung cancer, respiratory infections, decreased respiratory 
function and other health problems. Secondhand smoke also causes an estimated 7,000 lung cancer 
deaths in America each year.  There is no safe level of exposure to tobacco smoke. Neither the 
separation of smokers and nonsmokers, nor the introduction of new ventilation systems, can eliminate 
the health hazards caused by secondhand smoke.   
 
Unregulated electronic delivery devices closely resemble and purposefully mimic the act of smoking as 
users inhale aerosolized liquid nicotine and other substances heated by an electronic ignition system.  
They produce an aerosol or vapor of undetermined and potentially harmful substances, which may 
appear similar to smoke emitted by conventional tobacco products. Their use in workplaces and public 
places where smoking is prohibited creates concern and confusion and leads to difficulties in enforcing 
the smoking prohibitions.  After testing a number of e-cigarettes from two leading manufacturers, the 
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) determined that various samples tested contained not only 
nicotine but also detectable levels of known carcinogens and toxic chemicals, including tobacco-specific 
nitrosamines and diethylene glycol, a toxic chemical used in antifreeze.  The FDA’s testing also 
suggested that quality control processes used to manufacture the products are inconsistent or non-
existent (“Summary of results: Laboratory analysis of electronic cigarettes conducted by FDA, Food and 
Drug Administration, July 22, 2009; 
http://www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/PublicHealthFocus/ucm173146.htm 
 
By reducing the exposure of young people to adult smoking and unhealthy role modeling the 
elimination of smoking and vaping in public places furthers Minnesota’s goal of reducing youth 
smoking.  In addition to Minnesota, California, Connecticut, Delaware, Maine, and New York are among 
the states that have adopted laws ending all smoking in bars, restaurants, and other public places, as 
have the nations of Ireland, New Zealand and Norway.  There is no legal or constitutional “right to 
smoke.”  Business owners have no legal or constitutional right to expose their employees and 
customers to toxic chemicals, whether in tobacco smoke or otherwise.  On the contrary, employers have 
a duty to provide their workers with a workplace that is not unreasonably dangerous. 
 
Accordingly, the Roseau County Board finds and declares that the purpose of this Ordinance is to: 
(1) Protect the health, safety and welfare of the people of Roseau County from the adverse                
effects of secondhand smoke and the use of electronic delivery devices. 
(2) Affirm that the right to breathe has priority over allowing people to smoke or use electronic 
delivery devices.               
 
Section 2. Jurisdiction. 
Pursuant to Minn. Stat. §§ 145A.04-.05, this Ordinance shall apply throughout all of Roseau County 
including the municipalities therein. Nothing in this Ordinance shall prevent other local levels of 
government within Roseau County from adopting more stringent measures to protect citizens from 
smoking as defined in this Ordinance. 
 
Section 3.  Definitions. 

http://www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/PublicHealthFocus/ucm173146.htm


 2 

(a.)  "Electronic Delivery Device" means any product containing or delivering nicotine, lobelia, or any 
other substance intended for human consumption that can be used by a person to simulate smoking in 
the delivery of nicotine or any other substance through inhalation of  aerosol or vapor from the 
product.  The term includes any such devices, whether they are manufactured, distributed, marketed or 
sold as e-cigarettes, e-cigars, e-pipes, or under any other product name or descriptor. 
(b.)  “Indoor Area” means all space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded by walls,  
doorways, or windows, whether opened or closed, covering more that 50 percent of the combined 
surface area of the vertical panes constituting the perimeter of the area.  A wall includes a retractable 
divider, garage door, or other physical barrier, whether temporary or permanent.  A standard (0.011) 
gauge window screen with an 18 by 16 mesh count is not considered a wall. 
(c.)  “Minnesota Clean Indoor Air Act” means Minn. Stat. Section §§ 144.411-417, as it may be 
amended from time to time. 
(d.)  “Place of Employment” means any indoor area where one or more individuals perform any type 
of service for consideration of payment under any type of contractual relationship, including but not 
limited to an employment relationship with or for a private corporation, partnership, individual, or 
government office.  This term includes any location where one or more individuals gratuitously 
perform services for which individuals are ordinarily paid.  
(e.)  “Public Place” means any indoor area used by the general public, including, but not limited 
to, restaurants, bars, any other food or liquor establishment, retail stores and other commercial 
establishments, schools and other educational facilities, hospitals, nursing homes, auditoriums, arenas, 
meeting rooms, and common areas of rental apartment buildings. 
(f.)  “Smoke” or “Smoking” means the inhaling or exhaling smoke from any lighted or heated  
cigar, cigarette, pipe or any other tobacco or plant product, or inhaling or exhaling aerosol or vapor 
from any electronic delivery device.  Smoking shall include being in possession of a lighted or heated 
cigar, cigarette, pipe, or any other tobacco or plant product intended for inhalation or an electronic 
delivery device that is turned on or otherwise activated. 
 
Section 4.  Prohibitions. 
Subd. 1. Smoking Prohibited.  Smoking shall not be permitted in and no person shall smoke in a 
public place or in a place of employment. 
 
Section 5.  Responsibilities of Proprietors.  The proprietor or other person, firm, limited liability 
company, corporation or other entity that owns, leases, manages, operates, or otherwise controls the 
use of a public place or place of employment shall make reasonable efforts to prevent smoking by:  
(a.) Posting “No Smoking” signs that comply with the Minnesota Clean Indoor Air Act Rules (Minnesota 
Rules), part 4620.0500, as amended from time to time. 
(b.) Refusing to serve or service any person acting in violation of this Ordinance. 
(c.) Asking any person who smokes in an area where smoking is prohibited to refrain from smoking, 
and, if the person does not refrain from smoking after being asked to do so, ask the person to leave.  If 
the person refuses to leave, the proprietor, person, or entity in charge shall handle the situation 
consistent with lawful methods for handling other persons acting in a disorderly manner or as a 
trespasser. 
No proprietor, person or entity in charge of a public place or place of employment, may retaliate or take 
adverse action against an employee or other person who, in good faith, reports a violation of this 
Ordinance. 
  
Section 6.  Other Applicable Laws.   
This Ordinance is intended to complement and go beyond the Minnesota Clean Indoor Air Act, Minn. 
Stat. §§ 144.411-417, as amended from time to time.  Nothing in this Ordinance authorizes smoking in 
any location regulated by any other laws or applicable regulations. 



 3 

 
Section 7.  Violations and Penalties.   
A person who violates any provision of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a petty misdemeanor.  A person 
who violates any provision of this Ordinance within one year of a previous violation shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor.  Each violation and every day in which a violation occurs or continues, constitutes a 
separate offense. 
 
Section 8. Severability.  If any portion of this Ordinance, or its application to any circumstances, is 
held invalid, the remaining provisions shall be considered severable, and shall be given effect to the 
maximum extent possible. 
 
Section 9.  Effective Date.  The Roseau County Board of Commissioners hereby adopts this Ordinance  
 
on the _______________day of ___________________,  2016. The ordinance shall be effective upon passage by the  
 
Roseau County Board of Commissioners and its publication in, accordance with the law on the  
 
_______________ day of _____________________, 2016.  
 
 
 
 
 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 1 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 10, 2016 Originating Department:  Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
April 26, 2016 Board Proceedings 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Review and approve the April 26, 2016 Board Proceedings 
 

Background: 
      
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

April 26, 2016 
 

The Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, Minnesota met in the Courthouse in the City of 
Roseau, Minnesota on Tuesday, April 26, 2016 at 9:00 a.m.  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
 The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Board Chair Roger Falk. The Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited. Commissioners present were Roger Falk, Mark Foldesi, Todd Miller, Glenda Phillipe and Jack 
Swanson.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
 A motion to approve the Agenda was made by Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner 
Foldesi and carried unanimously. 
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 None.  
 
APPROVE BILLS 
 
 A motion was made by Commissioner Foldesi, seconded by Commissioner Phillipe, and carried 
unanimously to approve the payment of the following bills: 

 
Warrants Approved For Payment 4/14/2016 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 HAUGEN PHD LP/MARK L  2,827.50 
 NW CONCRETE PRODUCTS INC  20,105.99 
 ROSEAU CITY  12,759.31 
 7 Payment less than 2,000.00  3,414.66 

Final Total:  39,107.46 
 

Warrants Approved For Payment 4/21/2016 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 MN DEPT OF EMPLOYMENT  10,238.00 
 MN ENERGY RESOURCES  2,833.60 
 11 Payments less than 2,000.00  3,691.83 

Final Total:  16,763.43 
 

Warrants Approved On 4/26/2016 For Payment 4/29/2016 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 AMERICAN INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLY  3,755.80 
 AMERICAN LEGION POST 88 GREENBUSH  5,000.00 
 H & S MANUFACTURING INC  31,050.00 
 JOHNSON OIL CO INC  4,466.07 
 M & J CONSTRUCTION OF HOLT, INC  77,000.00 
 MAR-KIT LANDFILL  3,475.00 
 ROSEAU CO TREASURER  12,114.79 
 TOWN OF REINE  4,829.47 
 UND FORENSIC PATHOLOGHY  2,939.25 
 46 Payments less than 2,000.00  19,977.09 
 Final Total:  164,607.47 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 



 

A motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Commissioner Phillipe, seconded by 
Commissioner Foldesi and carried unanimously.  The Board, by adoption of its Consent Agenda, approved the 
April 12, 2016 Board Proceedings; approved a Tax Abatement Request for Ross Waage in the amount of 
$34,180.00, for tax years 2013, 2014 and 2015; approved a Personal Leave of Absence Request for Deaune 
Cole; recommended Jared Olafson to replace Myles Hogenson on the Greater MN Regional Parks and Trails 
Commission – District Planning Committee; approved Resolution No. 2016-04-02, Acceptance of a Juvenile 
Detention Alternatives Initiative Grant; approved the hire of Jessica Omdahl as an Eligibility Worker in the 
Social Services Department; and approved a Call for Bids for 2016 Ditching and Brushing Projects. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Sheriff 
 
 Sheriff Steve Gust met with the Board to discuss inmate medical costs.  The Board also discussed 
issues that have been taking place in our communities due to meth and other drug addictions. 
 
COUNTY BOARD ITEMS 
 
Commissioner Committee Reports 
 
 Commissioner Falk reported on the following committee(s):  Social Services Board, 4/19/16; 
Highway Committee, 4/19/16; and, Northwest Community Action Board Meeting, 4/21/16. 
 
 Commissioner Foldesi reported on the following committee(s):  Two Rivers Watershed District Board 
Meeting, 4/15/16; Social Services Board, 4/19/16; and, Highway Committee, 4/19/16.  
 
 Commissioner Miller reported on the following committee(s):   Social Services Board, 4/19/16; 
Highway Committee, 4/19/16; and, Moranville Township Board Meeting, 4/19/16.  
 
 Commissioner Phillipe reported on the following committee(s):  County Fair Booth Planning 
Committee, 4/12/16; Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP), 4/14/16; Social Services Board, 4/19/16; 
Highway Committee, 4/19/16; Warroad Parks and Recreation, 4/20/16; Warroad Community Education, 
4/20/16; Lake Township Board, 4/20/16; and, Warroad City Council, 4/26/16. 
 
 Commissioner Swanson reported on the following committee(s):  National Association of Counties 
Community Economic and Workforce Development Committee Teleconference, 4/12/16; Jadis Town Board, 
4/12/16; Roseau Convention and Visitors Bureau, 4/13/16; Team EPIC, 4/14/16; Association of Minnesota 
Counties Transportation Working Group, 4/15/16; Association of Minnesota Counties Board of Directors, 
4/15/16; Roseau County Extension Committee, 4/18/16; Social Services Board, 4/19/16; Highway 
Committee, 4/19/16; Domestic Violence Court Advisory Committee, 4/21/16; Roseau School Board, 
4/21/16; and, Association of Minnesota Counties Transportation Working Group, 4/22/16 
 

Upon motion carried, the Board adjourned the regular Meeting at 10:18 a.m.  The next Regular 
Meeting of the Board is scheduled for May 10, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Attest:       Date: __________________________ 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator   Roger Falk, Chair 
Roseau County, Minnesota    Board of County Commissioners 
       Roseau County, Minnesota 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 2 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 10, 2016 Originating Department:  Highway 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Advertisement for Hire 

Presenter:  Brian Ketring 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Consider authorizing publication of an Advertisement for Hire due to an upcoming retirement within the 
Department. 

Background: 
      
 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   County Board Item 1 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 10, 2016 Originating Department:  Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Commissioner Committee Reports 

Presenter:  Commissioners 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☒ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Commissioners will present their Committee Reports. 
 

Background: 
      
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

☒ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County Board 
May 2016 Meetings 
 
Glenda A. Phillipe 
District One 
 
 
May 3:  Committee of the Whole – Roseau 
May 3:  Operations – Roseau 
May 3:  Public Health – Roseau 
May 4:  Land of the Dancing Sky Agency on Aging – TRF 
May 5:  One Watershed One Plan; Warroad 
May 9:  Warroad City Council – Warroad 
May 9:  Warroad School Board – Warroad 
May 10:  County Board – Roseau 
May 10:  Pubic Hearings (ordinances) – Roseau 
May 11:  Lake Township – Warroad 
 



                               JACK  SWANSON COMMITTEE  REPORTS 
 
APRIL 27, 2016 -   ROSEAU ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY; created a 
workforce recruitment subcommittee 
 
MAY  2, 2016 -   ROSEAU CITY COUNCIL 
 
MAY  3, 2016 -   OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
 
MAY 3, 2016 -     COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 
MAY  3,  2016 -   BECOMING WELCOMING COMMUNITIES LEARNING CLUSTER 
 
MAY  4,  2016 -   ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION MEETING  (T.R.F.);  roundtable discussion of NW Minn 
commissioners, highway engineers and Minnesota Chamber of Commerce 
President Rick Trontvet 
 
MAY  4, 2016 -    COMMUNITY JUSTICE COORDINATING COMMITTEE;  discussed 
Domestic Violence Court;  drug-related Roseau County Jail inmates;  mental 
health grant for schools 
 
MAY  4,  2016 -   ROSEAU E.D.A. WORKFORCE RECRUITMENT 
SUBCOMMITTEE;  met w/ Katie Pieper  (Sandpieper Website Design) 
 
MAY  6,  2016 -   ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES TRANSPORTATION 
TASK FORCE (T.R.F.);  next steps in transportation advocacy 
 
MAY  9,  2016 -   ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE TELECONFERENCE 
 


	5-10-16.pdf
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA









[bookmark: _GoBack][image: ]Roseau County

Request for Board Action





		Agenda Item #:   Consent 1

(for office use only)



		Requested Board Date:

		May 10, 2016		Originating Department:  Coordinator



		Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda):

April 26, 2016 Board Proceedings

		Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski



		

		Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion:

☒< 5 minutes	☐ 5 minutes	☐ 10 minutes

☐ 15 minutes	☐ 30 minutes	☐ >30 minutes



		Board Action Requested:

Review and approve the April 26, 2016 Board Proceedings





		Background:

     





		Supporting Documentation:	☒ Attached	☐ None



		Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting:
☐ Delegations		☒ Consent Agenda

☐ Department Reports	☐ Committee Reports

☐ County Board Items	☐ Other





		

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

		



		Board Action:

	Approved as Requested:  	

	Denied:  	

	Tabled:  	

	Other:  	

		Distribution/Filing Instructions:  













image1.png





